

## JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

## Fifty-fourth Legislative Assembly

\* \* \* \* \*

Bismarck, February 27, 1995

The House convened at 1:00 p.m., with Speaker Martin presiding.

The prayer was offered by Representative Mutzenberger.

The roll was called and all members were present except Representatives Dobrinski, Huether, and Kelsch.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

## SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

The amendments on the Sixth order of business to Engrossed SB 2073, Engrossed SB 2089, SB 2118, Engrossed SB 2130, SB 2159, SB 2223, Engrossed SB 2418, and Engrossed SCR 4005 were adopted.

Engrossed SB 2073, Engrossed SB 2089, SB 2118, Engrossed SB 2130, SB 2159, SB 2223, Engrossed SB 2418, and Engrossed SCR 4005, as amended, were placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

## MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (ROY GILBREATH, CHIEF CLERK)

MADAM PRESIDENT: The House has passed unchanged: SB 2124, SB 2189, SB 2191, SB 2199, SB 2333, SCR 4015.

## SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2107: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 38-14.1-37 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to reimbursement of the public service commission for small coal mine operator costs.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 57 YEAS, 39 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Austin; Berg; Boucher; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clayburgh; Coats; DeKrey; Delmore; Dorso; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gordier; Gorman; Grumbo; Gulleon; Gunter; Hagle; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kerzman; Koppelman; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Mahoney; Martinson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Oban; Price; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitz; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie

NAYS: Bateman; Belter; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Byerly; Clark; Dalrymple; Delzer; DeWitz; Drovdal; Freier; Grosz; Hanson; Howard; Kempenich; Klein; Kliniske; Kretschmar; Lloyd; Maragos; Mickelson; Monson; Nottestad; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Rennerfeldt; Schimke; Shide; Skarphol; Soukup; Sveen; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Speaker Martin

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Dobrinski; Huether

SB 2107 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

## SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2108: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 38-14.2-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the powers and duties of the public service commission concerning abandoned mine reclamation projects.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 96 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleeson; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Dobrinski; Huether

SB 2108 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

## MOTION

REP. FREIER MOVED that the House waive the reading of the title to SB 2117, which motion prevailed.

## SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2117: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 14-03-10, 14-03-11, 14-03-17, 14-03-19, 14-03-20, 14-03-21, 14-03-22, 14-03-24, 30.1-02-06, and 57-37.1-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to clerk of district court duties concerning marriage licenses, probate matters, and access to safety deposit boxes.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 95 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleeson; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

NAYS: Mahoney

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Dobrinski; Huether

SB 2117 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

**SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2138:** A BILL for an Act to repeal chapter 61-24.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the Garrison Diversion Mitigation and Enhancement Lands Commission.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 93 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glasheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleason; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**NAYS:** Holm

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Dobrinski; Howard; Huether; Nicholas

SB 2138 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

**SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2139:** A BILL for an Act to repeal chapter 54-34.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the Gordon Aamoth Indian development fund.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 93 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleason; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**NAYS:** Bernstein; Gorman

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Dobrinski; Howard; Huether

Engrossed SB 2139 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

**SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2145:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 61-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the authority of the state engineer to refund water permit application fees.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 95 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Droydal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleon; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Dobrinski; Howard; Huether

Engrossed SB 2145 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

**SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2148:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 61-24.6-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to northwest area water supply project water development revenue bonds.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 62 YEAS, 33 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Berg; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Coats; Delmore; Dorso; Froseth; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Grumbo; Gulleon; Gunter; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Poolman; Price; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Speaker Martin

**NAYS:** Austin; Bateman; Belter; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delzer; DeWitz; Droydal; Freier; Galvin; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Hagle; Kempenich; Laughlin; Lloyd; Monson; Olson; Payne; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Schimke; Soukup; Torgerson; Wilkie

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Dobrinski; Howard; Huether

SB 2148 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

## SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

**SB 2156:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 55-02-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the location of state historical museums.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 94 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Austin; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleston; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**NAYS:** Bateman

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Dobrinski; Howard; Huether

SB 2156 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

## SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

**SB 2157:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 55-01-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the composition of the state historical board.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 92 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleston; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Speaker Martin

**NAYS:** Aarsvold; Laughlin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Dobrinski; Howard; Huether; Wilkie

Engrossed SB 2157 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2167: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 54-05.1-02, sections 54-05.1-03, and 54-05.1-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to legislative lobbying; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 94 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleeson; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjelm; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Dobrinski; Howard; Huether; Kunkel

Engrossed SB 2167 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

\*\*\*\*\*

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2175: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to compliance of the uniform group insurance program with federal requirements and group purchasing arrangements.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 93 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleeson; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjelm; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

NAYS: Delzer; Schimke

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Dobrinski; Howard; Huether

Engrossed SB 2175 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2178: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 26.1-01-07.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to transfer of the cash balance in the insurance regulatory trust fund to the general fund.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 95 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glasheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleson; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjelm; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Dobrinski; Howard; Huether

Engrossed SB 2178 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2196: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 36-14-19 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the disposal of animals.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 95 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glasheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleson; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjelm; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Dobrinski; Howard; Huether

SB 2196 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2205: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 55-03-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to cultural resource investigation permits.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 71 YEAS, 24 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Austin; Belter; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Carlisle; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Coats; Dalrymple; Delmore; Dorso; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grumbo; Gulleson; Gunter; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Speaker Martin

**NAYS:** Bateman; Berg; Brown; Byerly; Carlson; Clayburgh; DeKrey; Delzer; DeWitz; Drovdal; Freier; Grosz; Hagle; Jacobs; Kempenich; Kerzman; Laughlin; Mickelson; Nichols; Poolman; Schimke; Skarphol; Timm; Wilkie

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Dobrinski; Howard; Huether

SB 2205 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

## SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

**SB 2208:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new chapter to title 55 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to unclaimed property held by museums or historical societies.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 94 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleson; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Dobrinski; Dorso; Howard; Huether

SB 2208 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

## REQUEST

**REP. DORSO REQUESTED** that HCR 3046 be removed from the Consent Calendar and be placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar, which request was granted.

**SECOND READING OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS  
AND SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION ON CONSENT CALENDAR**

- HCR 3040:** A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Council to study the feasibility and desirability of merging the State Gaming Commission and the State Racing Commission into a single commission.
- HCR 3041:** A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Council to study the state's wetlands laws and related issues.
- HCR 3043:** A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Council to study the legislative environment and process.
- SCR 4008:** A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Council to study the state's investment process and the investment of state funds.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final adoption of the resolutions, which have been read, the roll was called and there were 95 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleon; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Dobrinski; Howard; Huether

HCR 3040, HCR 3041, HCR 3043, and SCR 4008 were declared adopted on a recorded roll call vote.

\*\*\*\*\*

**SECOND READING OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION**

**HCR 3046:** A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Council to study legislative expense reimbursement.

The question being on the final passage of the resolution, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS.

HCR 3046 was declared lost on a verification vote.

\*\*\*\*\*

**MOTION**

**REP. DORSO MOVED** that SB 2428 be returned to the House floor from the Industry, Business and Labor Committee and be rereferred to the Agriculture Committee, which motion prevailed. Pursuant to Rep. Dorso's motion, SB 2428 was rereferred.

**MOTION**

**REP. FREIER MOVED** that the absent members be excused, which motion prevailed.

**MOTION**

**REP. FREIER MOVED** that the House be on the Fifth, Twelfth, Thirteenth, and Sixteenth orders of business and at the conclusion of those orders, the House

stand adjourned until 1:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 28, 1995, which motion prevailed.

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**HCR 3038: Education Committee (Rep. Rydell, Chairman)** recommends **AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS** and when so amended, recommends **DO PASS** (10 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HCR 3038 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 2, after "of" insert "elementary and"

Page 1, line 6, after "numerous" insert "elementary and"

Page 1 line 17, after "of" insert "elementary and"

Renumber accordingly

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**HCR 3039: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman)** recommends **AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS** and when so amended, recommends **DO PASS** (8 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HCR 3039 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 2, replace "two" with "four"

Page 1, line 22, replace "two" with "four" and remove ", one in an"

Page 1, line 23, remove "eastern and one in a western location in the state,"

Renumber accordingly

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**HCR 3044: Education Committee (Rep. Rydell, Chairman)** recommends **DO PASS** (9 YEAS, 6 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HCR 3044 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**HCR 3045: Human Services Committee (Rep. Svedjan, Chairman)** recommends **DO PASS** and **BE PLACED ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR** (11 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HCR 3045 was placed on the Tenth order on the calendar.

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**SB 2040, as engrossed: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman)** recommends **DO PASS** (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2040 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**SB 2070: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman)** recommends **AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS** and when so amended, recommends **DO PASS** (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2070 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 5, after "sections" insert "11-04-07,"

Page 1, line 11, replace the second "section" with "sections" and after the third comma insert "31-01-16,"

Page 1, line 13, after the second comma insert "sections 37-18.1-01, 39-06-43,"

Page 1, line 17, after the third comma insert "48-05-06," and after the fourth comma insert "54-03-25,"

Page 1, line 20, after "sections" insert "4-05.1-14,"

Page 1, line 21, after "27-01-06" insert a comma

Page 1, line 23, after the comma insert "elimination of an obsolete reference to the Mandan experiment station,"

Page 3, after line 28, insert:

"SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 11-04-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

11-04-07. Form of ballot on county seat removal. The ballot to be used at an election for the removal of a county seat shall must be in ~~substantially the following~~ a form:

~~Shall the county seat of \_\_\_\_\_ County be removed from \_\_\_\_\_ to \_\_\_\_\_?~~  
Yes—  
No—

that will allow an elector to vote for the existing county seat or a place in the county named in the petition under section 11-04-04."

Page 10, after line 16, insert:

"SECTION 21. AMENDMENT. Section 31-01-16 of the 1993 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

31-01-16. Compensation and mileage and travel expense of witness. A witness in a civil or criminal case is entitled to receive:

1. A sum of twenty-five dollars for each day necessarily in attendance before the district court or before any other board or tribunal, except municipal court.
2. A sum for mileage and travel expense reimbursement equal to the reimbursement rates provided for state employees in sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09.

In all criminal cases in district court cases, the attorney general shall pay prosecution witness fees and expenses, and the supreme court shall pay other witness fees for indigents and expenses. Prisoners may not be compensated as witnesses under this section."

Page 12, after line 19, insert:

"SECTION 26. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-01 of the 1993 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

37-18.1-01. Administrative committee on veterans' affairs - Membership - Appointment. There is hereby created an administrative committee on veterans' affairs, which, for purposes of this chapter, must hereinafter be referred to as the committee. The committee must consist of ~~four~~ three ex officio nonvoting members and fifteen voting members. The adjutant general, the center director of the veterans' administration, and the executive director of job service North Dakota are the ex officio nonvoting members who shall serve in an advisory capacity to the committee. On or before June 20, 1971, the American legion, the veterans of foreign wars, the disabled American veterans, the veterans of World War II, Korea, and Vietnam, (amvets), and Vietnam veterans' of America, incorporated, shall each prepare a list containing the names of six persons qualifying as veterans under the provisions of section 37-01-40, for appointment as voting members of the committee. On or before July 1, 1971, the governor shall select

fifteen nominees, three from each list, five of whom must be appointed to a term of three years, five of whom must be appointed to a term of two years, and five of whom must be appointed to a term of one year, or until their successors are appointed and qualified. On or before the twentieth day of June in each year, beginning in the year 1972, each of the above-listed nominating organizations shall submit a list containing the names of two persons who qualify as veterans under the provisions of section 37-01-40, to the governor for appointment or reappointment as voting members of the committee. On or before the first day of July in each year, beginning in the year 1972, the governor shall select one nominee from each list, a total of five nominees, to fill expiring terms of voting members of the committee. Each such appointment must be for a term of three years, or until a successor is appointed and qualified. All terms begin on the first day of July and end on the thirtieth day of June in the year specified. In case of the inability or failure of any voting member of the committee to serve, the governor shall appoint another member from a list of two persons qualifying as veterans under the provisions of section 37-01-40, submitted by the nominating organization represented by the member who was unable or failed to serve. Such appointments must be made for the remainder of the unexpired term.

**SECTION 27. AMENDMENT.** Section 39-06-43 of the 1993 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**39-06-43. Extension of license suspension or revocation.** The director upon receiving a record of the conviction of any person upon a charge of driving a vehicle while the license or driving privileges of the person was were suspended shall extend the period of that suspension for an additional:

1. Like period not to exceed ninety days if the operator's record for the three years preceding the most recent violation of section 39-06-42 or equivalent ordinance shows the person's operator's license or privilege has not been suspended, revoked, or denied for a prior violation of section 39-06-42 or equivalent ordinance;
2. One hundred eighty days if the operator's record for the three years preceding the most recent violation of section 39-06-42 or equivalent ordinance shows the person's operator's license or privilege has been once suspended, revoked, or denied for a prior violation of section 39-06-42 or equivalent ordinance;
3. One year if the operator's record for the three-year period preceding the most recent violation of section 39-06-42 or equivalent ordinance shows the person's operator's license or privilege has been at least twice suspended, revoked, or denied for a prior violation of section 39-06-42 or equivalent ordinance.

If the original suspension was imposed for violation of section 39-08-01 or equivalent ordinance, the director shall extend the period of that suspension for at least six months. If the suspension of driving privileges resulted solely from failure to appear in court or to post and forfeit bond on noncriminal traffic violations, there may be no additional period of suspension. Suspension periods for failure to appear or to post and forfeit bond on noncriminal traffic violations may be for an indefinite duration. If the conviction was upon a charge of driving while a license or driving privileges was revoked, the director may not issue a new license for an additional period of one year from and after the date the person would otherwise have been entitled to apply for a new license. Upon a conviction of a person for violating a restricted license issued under section 39-06.1-11 and in

which the underlying suspension was imposed for violating section 39-08-01 or equivalent ordinance or is governed by chapter 39-20, the director shall extend the period of the underlying suspension in accordance with subsection 5 of section 39-06-17."

Page 17, after line 23, insert:

"SECTION 37. AMENDMENT. Section 48-05-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**48-05-06. Alcoholic beverages and drugs in charitable institutions prohibited.** Every person who shall take, send, or introduce any alcoholic beverage or controlled substance into any of the buildings or upon any of the premises of any charitable institution of this state, or of any county, or city thereof, except upon the express authority of the physician or chief executive officer of such institution, given in writing, is guilty of a class A misdemeanor. As used in this section, "controlled substance" ~~shall be as defined has~~ the meaning provided in subsection 4 of section 19-03.1-01, and shall include includes counterfeit substances as defined in ~~subsection 5 of section 19-03.1-01.~~

Page 18, after line 2, insert:

"SECTION 39. AMENDMENT. Section 54-03-25 of the 1993 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**54-03-25. Introduction of bills and amendments - Actuarial impact statement.** Beginning December 1, 1992, a legislative measure affecting workers' compensation benefits or premium rates may not be prefiled for introduction or introduced in either house of the legislative assembly unless ~~job service North Dakota the workers~~ compensation bureau has reviewed the measure and has determined whether the measure will have an actuarial impact on the workers' compensation fund. If the ~~job service North Dakota workers compensation bureau~~ determines that the measure will have an actuarial impact on the fund, the measure may not be prefiled or introduced unless accompanied by an actuarial impact statement prepared, at the expense of the ~~job service North Dakota workers compensation bureau~~, by the actuary employed by the ~~job service North Dakota workers compensation bureau~~. No amendment affecting workers' compensation benefits or premium rates may be attached to any legislative measure unless the amendment is accompanied by either a statement prepared by the ~~job service North Dakota workers compensation bureau~~, stating that the amendment is not expected to have any actuarial impact on the workers' compensation fund, or an actuarial impact statement prepared, at the expense of the ~~job service North Dakota workers compensation bureau~~, by the actuary employed by the ~~job service North Dakota workers compensation bureau~~."

Page 19, line 19, after "Code" insert "and section 4-05.1-14 of the 1993 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code"

Renumber accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2086, as engrossed: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (11 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2086 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2109: Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Olson, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2109 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 2, line 2, remove the overstrike over "~~The site and corridor~~"

Page 2, line 3, remove the overstrike over "~~identification shall be made in compliance with the~~" and after "inventory" insert "criteria"

Page 2, remove the overstrike over line 4

Renumber accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2116, as engrossed: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2116 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2127, as engrossed: Agriculture Committee (Rep. Nicholas, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2127 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 4, line 11, overstrike "any one or"

Page 4, overstrike line 12

Page 4, line 13, overstrike "boating, camping, picnicking, hiking, pleasure driving," and remove "animal"

Page 4, line 14, remove "riding," overstrike "nature study, water skiing," and overstrike "sports, and visiting,"

Page 4, overstrike lines 15 and 16

Page 4, line 17, overstrike "user" and insert immediately thereafter "any activity engaged in for the purpose of exercise, relaxation, pleasure, or education"

Renumber accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2128: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2128 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2142: Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Olson, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2142 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, remove "to create and enact a new subsection to section"

Page 1, remove line 2

Page 1, line 3, remove "hunter safety education requirements;"

Page 1, line 16, after "person" insert "with that person's hunter education certificate number on the license"

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 5

Renumber accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2146, as engrossed: Agriculture Committee (Rep. Nicholas, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO

PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2146 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 2, line 1, replace "Any sale, transfer, or exchange of" with "For a period of sixty days the"

Page 2, line 2, replace "may be made only with" with "must first be offered for sale, transfer, or exchange to" and after the first "the" insert "current"

Page 2, line 3, after the underscored period insert "Any parcel of property sold, transferred, or exchanged under this section may not exceed two acres [.81 hectare]."

Reumber accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2149, as reengrossed: Political Subdivisions Committee (Rep. Soukup, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (9 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Reengrossed SB 2149 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 19, remove the overstrike over "~~churches,~~"

Page 1, line 20, remove the overstrike over "~~schools, hospitals, hotels, halls, theaters, amphitheaters, and~~"

Page 2, line 1, remove the overstrike over "~~other~~"

Reumber accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2151, as engrossed: Agriculture Committee (Rep. Nicholas, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2151 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2158, as engrossed: Agriculture Committee (Rep. Nicholas, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2158 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2207: Political Subdivisions Committee (Rep. Soukup, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2207 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 10, replace "to recover rental fees" with ". Admission fees collected up to the cost of a leased exhibition must be deposited in a special account in the special revolving fund established by section 55-02-04 and may be used only to pay the rental fees for the exhibition. Any admission fees collected in excess of the cost of a leased exhibition must be deposited in the general fund"

Reumber accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2220: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Wardner, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (11 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2220 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 3, line 3, remove the overstrike over "~~, and~~", after "must" insert "may", remove the overstrike over "~~be issued~~", and overstrike ". The"

Page 3, line 5, remove "fee"

Page 3, line 6, replace "for permits issued under this section is fifteen dollars" with "at a discounted rate authorized by the director"

Renumber accordingly

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2244, as engrossed: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 1 NAY, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2244 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2250: Agriculture Committee (Rep. Nicholas, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2250 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2258: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2258 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2262: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (8 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2262 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2265, as engrossed: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Timm, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (11 YEAS, 1 NAY, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2265 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2284: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2284 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2285, as engrossed: Human Services Committee (Rep. Svedjan, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2285 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2286: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2286 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2331: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (7 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2331 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2397, as engrossed: Human Services Committee (Rep. Svedjan, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (11 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2397 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2454: Human Services Committee (Rep. Svedjan, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (11 YEAS, 1 NAY, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2454 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2456: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends DO PASS

(11 YEAS, 1 NAY, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2456 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2459, as engrossed: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends DO NOT PASS (11 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2459 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2473: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (7 YEAS, 6 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2473 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2474, as engrossed: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends DO NOT PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2474 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar.

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2521: Agriculture Committee (Rep. Nicholas, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2521 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 9, after "road" insert "or an affirmative act of the landowner causes or contributes to the claim"

Renumber accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SCR 4003: Human Services Committee (Rep. Svedjan, Chairman) recommends DO PASS and BE PLACED ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR (11 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SCR 4003 was placed on the Tenth order on the calendar.

## MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM C. PARKER, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has passed unchanged: HB 1079, HB 1096, HB 1143, HB 1158, HB 1197, HB 1438, HB 1480.

## MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM C. PARKER, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has failed to pass: HB 1063.

## MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM C. PARKER, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The President has signed and your signature is respectfully requested on: SB 2032, SB 2048, SB 2077, SB 2119, SB 2125, SB 2126, SB 2153, SB 2165, SB 2168, SB 2169, SB 2184, SB 2185, SB 2337, SB 2346, SCR 4004.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Freier's motion.

ROY GILBREATH, Chief Clerk